


















































































































































 

B UR E A U  OF  E L EC TI O NS  
R IC H A R D  H .  A US T IN  B UI L D I NG ,  4 3 0  W .  A L L E GA N  S TR E E T    L A N S I N G,  M IC H I GA N 4 8 9 18  

w w w. M i c h i g a n . go v / e l ec t i o ns   ( 51 7 )  3 3 5 -3 2 3 4  

 

May 20, 2021 
 

Charles Miller 
11439 St. Aloysius 
Romulus, Michigan 48174 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
The Department of State received a response to the complaint you filed against LeRoy Burcroff, 
which concerns an alleged violation of the Michigan Campaign Finance Act (MCFA), 1976 P.A. 
388, MCL 169.201 et seq.  A copy of the response is provided as an enclosure with this letter. 
 
If you elect to file a rebuttal statement, you are required to send it within 10 business days of the 
date of this letter to the Bureau of Elections, Richard H. Austin Building, 1st Floor, 430 West 
Allegan Street, Lansing, Michigan 48918.   
 
       Sincerely, 

 
 
 
Adam Fracassi 
Bureau of Elections 
Michigan Department of State 
 

c: Daniel Wholihan, Attorney for Mr. Burcroff 
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September 15, 2022 

 
Daniel J. Wholihan  
Attorney for LeRoy Burcroff 
P.O. Box 1182 
Brighton, MI 48116 

  
Re: Miller v. Burcroff  

Campaign Finance Complaint No. 2020-12-206-33  
  
Dear Mr. Wholihan:  
 

The Department of State (Department) has finished investigating the campaign finance 

complaint filed against your client, LeRoy Burcroff, alleging violations of the Michigan 

Campaign Finance Act (MCFA or Act). This letter concerns the disposition of that complaint. 

 

The complaint alleged your client violated the MCFA by knowingly filing inaccurate campaign 

finance reports, including a failure to itemize credit card payments and improper use of 

committee funds for personal expenses. For example, the complaint alleged that your client used 

campaign funds to finance his personal vehicle and that he claimed payments to close friends and 

family members as charitable donations and charitable contributions.    

 

The Department invited you to respond to Mr. Miller’s complaint. You responded  to the 

complaint on behalf of your client. In your response, you break down how your client used 

campaign funds relative to various payments indicated on his campaign finance report and raised 

in Mr. Miller’s complaint. You describe many of the individual payments in more detail and 

contend that they were permissible expenditures under the MCFA. You argued that Mr. 

Burcroff’s use of campaign funds for the lease of his Jeep was permissible because he “only used 

the Jeep for campaign activities and incidental to office holder business.”  

 

Your response included an admission that Mr. Burcroff used campaign funds in connection with 

his daughter’s wedding reception. The response indicates that, because your client had invited 

donors, volunteers, and supporters to his daughter’s wedding, Mr. Burcroff ‘opened the bar’ and 

used campaign funds to pay for that bar bill, but that he later remitted the entire cost back to his 

campaign account because of “poor optics” and because it was unclear whether the expenditure 

was permissible. Your response also contains an admission that the credit card payments 

indicated on Mr. Burcroff’s campaign finance reports should have been itemized; however, you 

explain that your client had limited guidance on how to do so. Finally, you indicate that your 
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client, based on your advice, remitted $20,000 to his candidate committee on September 19, 

2020.   

 

Mr. Miller was offered the opportunity to provide a rebuttal statement but did not do so.  

 

The MCFA requires candidates and committees file contributions and expenditures with the  

appropriate filing official by specific dates. MCL 169.233(1) -(3). The MCFA requires a  

committee that receives or expends more than $1,000 during any election to file campaign  

finance reports in compliance with the Act. MCL 169.233(6). A person who knowingly omits or 

underreports expenditures required to be disclosed by the Act is subject to a civil fine of not 

more than $1,000 or the amount of the expenditures omitted or underreported, whichever is  

greater. MCL 169.233(11).  

 

The MCFA also prohibits candidate committees from making an expenditure or other 

disbursement except to further the nomination or election of the candidate for which the 

committee was formed. MCL 169.244(2). “Expenditures by a candidate committee must be 

made for the purpose of influencing an election, not for the personal benefit of an individual.”  

Interpretive Statement issued to Christopher Rose, November 2, 1978.  Section 3 of the MCFA 

defines “committee” as “a person that receives contributions or makes expenditures for the 

purpose of influencing or attempting to influence the action of the voters for or against the 

nomination or election of a candidate.”  MCL 169.203(4).  Similarly, “expenditure” is defined in 

relevant part as a payment of anything of ascertainable monetary value in assistance of or 

opposition to the nomination or election of a candidate.  MCL 169.206(1). 

 

The Department has reviewed the evidence submitted in the matter and finds that there is 

sufficient evidence to conclude that there may be reason to believe that your client violated the 

MCFA. The evidence submitted establishes that your client used committee funds for improper 

purposes, as multiple expenses were used for purposes outside of furthering your client’s 

election. While you indicated that Mr. Burcroff remitted $20,000 to his candidate committee on 

September 19, 2020, it is not clear that this fully satisfies the amount that his candidate 

committee expended in violation of the MCFA. Moreover, it is not clear that this amount 

includes the fees that would have been assessed for these violations.  

 

This letter serves to notify you that the Department has determined there may be reason to 

believe that you have violated the Act and to notify you that the Department is beginning the 

informal resolution process.  

 

When the Department finds that there may be reason to believe a violation has occurred, the Act 

requires the Department to use “informal methods such as a conference [or] conciliation” to 

correct the potential violation or to prevent further violation. MCL 169.215(10). Statute provides 

90 business days for the Department to engage this resolution process. Id. If this matter is not 

resolved within 90 business days, or by February 2, 2023, the Department will have no choice 

but to proceed with either referral to the Attorney General’s office for enforcement of any 

criminal penalties or commence an administrative hearing against you. Id. 
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For these reasons, please contact the undersigned at BOERegulatory@Michigan.gov as soon as 

possible to discuss a resolution to matter. If you fail to make contact to discuss a possible 

resolution, or if a resolution cannot be reached by February 2, 2023, the Department will have no 

choice but to seek the aforementioned remedies.  

 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Adam Fracassi, Regulatory Manager 
Bureau of Elections 
Michigan Department of State 
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